

EXHIBIT 5B

New language
[deleted language]

BYLAWS

OF

BOX EXCHANGE LLC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS.....	1
Section 1.01 Definitions.....	1
ARTICLE 2. LOCATION	3
Section 2.01 Location of Exchange	3
ARTICLE 3. MEMBERS	3
Section 3.01 Meetings of the Members	3
Section 3.02 Voting	4
Section 3.03 Presiding Officer of Meetings.....	4
Section 3.04 Secretary of Meetings	4
Section 3.05 Action by Written Consent	4
ARTICLE 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS	4
Section 4.01 General Powers	4
Section 4.02 Number of Directors	4
Section 4.03 Term of Directors.....	5
Section 4.04 Interested Directors	5
Section 4.05 Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman	6
Section 4.06 Nominating Committee.....	7
Section 4.07 Resignation	11
Section 4.08 Removal	12
Section 4.09 Disqualification.....	12
Section 4.10 Vacancies	12
Section 4.11 Meetings of the Board.....	12
Section 4.12 Compensation	14
ARTICLE 5. REGULATION.....	14
Section 5.01 General.....	14
Section 5.02 Confidentiality of Information and Records Relating to SRO Function	15
Section 5.03 Rulemaking	15
Section 5.04 Securities.....	16
Section 5.05 Penalties	16
ARTICLE 6. COMMITTEES.....	16
Section 6.01 Board Committees	16
Section 6.02 Procedures	16
Section 6.03 Committee Quorum and Voting.....	16
Section 6.04 Executive Committee.....	16
Section 6.05 Audit Committee.....	17
Section 6.06 Compensation Committee.....	17
Section 6.07 Regulatory Oversight Committee	17
Section 6.08 Hearing Committee	18

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

	<u>Page</u>
Section 6.09 Committee Expenses.....	18
ARTICLE 7. OFFICERS.....	18
Section 7.01 Officers	18
Section 7.02 Absence of Officer and Delegation of Duties.....	19
Section 7.03 Resignation and Removal	19
Section 7.04 Election and Term of Office	19
Section 7.05 Compensation	19
Section 7.06 Secretary	19
Section 7.07 Agents and Employees.....	19
Section 7.08 Bond.....	20
ARTICLE 8. INDEMNIFICATION AND ADVANCEMENT OF EXPENSES	20
Section 8.01 Right to Indemnification	20
Section 8.02 Right to Advancement of Expenses.....	20
Section 8.03 Board Determination Not to Advance Expenses	20
Section 8.04 Non-Exclusivity of Rights	21
Section 8.05 Effect of Repeal or Modification	21
Section 8.06 Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit.....	21
Section 8.07 Insurance	21
ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS	21
Section 9.01 Maintenance of Books and Records	21
Section 9.02 Conflict	21
ARTICLE 10. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, CONTRACTS, ETC	21
Section 10.01 Payment Instruments.....	21
Section 10.02 Governmental Documents	22
ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS; EMERGENCY BYLAWS	22
Section 11.01 Amendments	22
Section 11.02 Emergency Bylaws	22

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions. Capitalized terms used in these Bylaws without definition shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in the LLC Agreement. When used in these Bylaws, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) “Board Committee” means a committee of the Board.

[(b)“BOX Holdings Director” means a Director who is also an officer or director of BOX Holdings, MX US 2, Inc. or an Affiliate of MX US 2, Inc.

(c) “BOX Options Participant” means a firm, or organization that is registered with the Exchange pursuant to the Rule 2000 Series of the Rules for purposes of participating in options trading on the System as an “Order Flow Provider” and/or “Market Maker,” each as defined therein.]

[(d)]b) “broker” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a)(4) of the Exchange Act.

[(e)]c) “Bylaws” means these Bylaws, as may be amended or amended and restated from time to time.

[(f)]d) “Chairman” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.05(a).

[(g)]e) “CRO” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.01.

[(h)]f) “Day” means calendar day.

[(i)]g) “Dealer” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a)(5) of the Exchange Act.

[(j)]h) “Exchange” means BOX Exchange LLC.

[(k)]i) “Exchange Violation” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.08(a).

(j) “Facility Director” means a Director who is a director or senior executive officer of an Exchange Facility.

(k)“Facility Representative” means a member of the Nominating Committee who is a director or senior executive officer of an Exchange Facility.

(l) “Indemnified Claims” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.01.

(m) “Indemnified Person” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.01.

(n) “Industry Representative” means an individual who is an officer, director or employee of a broker or dealer or who has been employed in any such capacity at any time within the prior three (3) years, as well as an

individual who has, or has had, a consulting or employment relationship with the Exchange, or any Affiliate of the Exchange, at any time within the prior three (3) years.

(o) “Interested Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

(p) “Interested Matter” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04(a).

(q) “LLC Agreement” means the Second Amended and Restated BOX Exchange LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time.

(r) “Non-Industry Director” means a Director who (i) is a Public Director or (ii) is a Non-Industry Representative.

(s) “Non-Industry Representative” means an individual who is not an Industry Representative.

(t) “Observer” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.02.

(u) “Participant Director” means a Director who is a Participant Representative.

(v) “Participant Representative” means an officer, director or employee of [a BOX Options]an Exchange Facility Participant.

(w) “Public Director” means a Director who (i) has no material business relationship with the Exchange or any Affiliate of the Exchange, or any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant or any Affiliate of any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant and (ii) is not associated with any broker or dealer as required pursuant to Section 6(b)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; provided, however, that an individual who otherwise qualifies as a Public Director shall not be disqualified from serving in such capacity solely because such individual is a Director of the Exchange and/or the Chairman or Vice Chairman.

(x) “Rules” means the rules of the Exchange as adopted or amended from time to time.

(y) “Secretary” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.05.

(z) [“System” means the electronic system operated by the Exchange that receives and disseminates quotes, executes orders and reports transactions.

(aa)]“Vice Chairman” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.05(b).

ARTICLE 2. LOCATION

Section 2.01 Location of Exchange. The Exchange shall maintain a registered office in the State of Delaware as required by law. The Exchange may also have offices and/or facilities at other places, within or without the State of Delaware, as the Board may from time to time determine or as the business of the Exchange may require.

ARTICLE 3. MEMBERS**Section 3.01 Meetings of the Members.**

(a) Meetings of the Members shall be held at such place, within or without the State of Delaware, as the Board designates.

(b) The Members shall meet annually on such date and at such time as the Board designates to elect the Nominating Committee and to transact such other business as the Members determine.

(c) Special meetings of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act or the LLC Agreement, may be called by the Chairman or by written notice signed by a majority of the Board. Members holding at least 20% of the Voting Percentage Interest may also call a special meeting by making a written request to the Secretary and, upon receipt of such request, the Secretary shall call such meeting by written notice to the Board and the Members. The Board may designate the place of meeting for any special meeting and, if no such designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal executive offices of the Exchange. Such a request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. Business transacted at a special meeting shall be limited to the purpose or purposes set forth in the written notice of the meeting except that such other business may be transacted as the Members determine.

(d) Whenever the Members are required or permitted to take any action at a meeting, unless notice is waived by the Members, a written notice of the meeting shall be given to the Members by the Secretary which shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Unless otherwise provided by law, and except in instances in which the Members duly waive notice, the written notice of any meeting shall be given personally or by mail or email, not less than two (2) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to the Members. If mailed, notice shall be deemed given when deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, directed to the Members at the addresses of the Members appearing on the records of the Exchange. When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting, the Exchange may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If, however, the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days or, if after the

adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to the Members.

Section 3.02 Voting. The vote of the Members holding a majority of the Voting Percentage Interest shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which, by express provision of law, the LLC Agreement or these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.

Section 3.03 Presiding Officer of Meetings. The Chairman, if any, or in the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, shall preside at all meetings of the Members. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, the presiding Officer shall be elected by vote of the Members.

Section 3.04 Secretary of Meetings. The Secretary of the Exchange (the “Secretary”) shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Members. In the absence of the Secretary, the presiding Officer of the meeting shall appoint any other person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 3.05 Action by Written Consent. Any action that may be taken by the Members in a meeting may be taken by written consent in lieu of a meeting if such written consent is duly executed by Members sufficient to have taken such action if such Members had voted in a meeting at which all Members were present and promptly delivered to the Secretary to be included in the minutes of the Exchange. Upon receipt, the Secretary shall promptly provide written notice of such action to the Members that did not execute such written consent. Any such action by written consent in lieu of a meeting shall be effective as of the date such written consent is executed by the Members unless another date is specified therein.

ARTICLE 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 4.01 General Powers. The property, business and affairs of the Exchange shall be managed by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Board may exercise all such powers of the Exchange and have the authority to perform all such lawful acts as are permitted by law, the LLC Agreement, these Bylaws and the Rules, and shall be vested with all powers necessary for the governing of the Exchange as an “exchange” within the meaning of the Exchange Act. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the LLC Agreement, these Bylaws and the Rules, the Board may delegate any of its powers to a Board Committee, appointed pursuant to Section 6.01 of the Bylaws, or to the Exchange staff.

Section 4.02 Number of Directors. The authorized number of Directors shall be as determined from time to time by the Board and shall be at least five (5) and not more than eleven (11). A majority of the Directors serving on the Board shall be Non-Industry Directors. At least one of the Non-Industry Directors shall also be a Public Director. A number of Directors equal to the number of Exchange Facilities shall be Facility Directors and one (1) such Facility Director shall be selected by each Exchange Facility. At least twenty percent (20%) of the Directors shall be Participant Directors[. One] and at least one (1) [Director shall be a BOX Holdings]Participant Director [and not more than one Director shall be a BOX Holdings Director.]shall be selected from among the Exchange Facility Participants of each then existing

Exchange Facility. No [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant shall have more than one officer, director or partner of such [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant serving as a Participant Director at any time. [The]As soon as practicable after the commencement of operations of any new Exchange Facility, a new Participant Director, Participant Representative, Facility Director and Facility Representative shall be appointed by the Board [shall consist initially of Directors elected by the Members and set forth on Schedule 2 to the LLC Agreement and such initial Directors]from among the eligible individuals with respect to such Exchange Facility and such individuals shall serve [only]in such respective capacities until the first annual meeting of the Members following such appointment, [which meeting shall be held as promptly as possible after the effective date of the LLC Agreement and within ninety (90) days after the Exchange is approved as an SRO]when the regular selection processes shall govern.

Section 4.03 Term of Directors. Directors shall serve terms of one year each beginning each year at the annual meeting of the Members. Each Director shall serve until his or her successor is appointed and qualified or until such Director's resignation, removal, death or disability. Directors may serve consecutive terms if appointed thereto.

Section 4.04 Interested Directors.

(a) No Director shall directly or indirectly participate as a member of the Board or of any Board Committee in deliberating or voting on any matter which would substantially affect his or her interests or the interests of any Person in whom he or she is directly or indirectly interested (with respect to such Director, an "Interested Matter"), although interested Directors (with respect to any Interested Matter, each an "Interested Director") may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at the meeting of the Board or of a Board Committee which authorizes actions with respect to an Interested Matter.

(b) Any Interested Director shall disclose to the Board, and recuse himself or herself from deliberations and votes on, any Interested Matter with respect to such Interested Director. In the event any Interested Director fails to comply with this paragraph, such Interested Director shall be disqualified from deliberations and votes on any Interested Matter by a vote of the Board or by the chairman of any Board Committee with respect to such Board Committee.

(c) For purposes of this Section 4.04, a Director is not personally interested solely by reason of being or having been a member of a Board Committee which has made prior inquiry, examination or investigation of the subject under consideration, nor in the determination of matters that may affect the [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants as a whole or certain types of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants, and a Participant Director shall not be prohibited from participating in deliberations and votes on a matter solely by reason of such Participant Director's participation in the normal course of the conduct of Exchange business.

(d) The Exchange shall not enter into any of the following transactions with any Affiliate of the Exchange unless such transaction shall have been first approved by a majority vote of the Directors that are not Interested Directors:

- (i) any loan or extension of credit to such Affiliate;
- (ii) any purchase of, or an investment in, securities issued by such Affiliate;
- (iii) a purchase of assets from such Affiliate;
- (iv) the acceptance of securities issued by such Affiliate as collateral security for a loan or extension of credit to any Person;
- (v) the issuance of a guarantee, acceptance, or letter of credit on behalf of such Affiliate;
- (vi) the sale of securities or other assets to such Affiliate;
- (vii) any transaction where such Affiliate acts as an agent or broker or receives a fee for its services;
- (viii) the payment of money or the furnishing of services to such Affiliate under a contract, lease or otherwise; and
- (ix) any transaction or series of transactions with a third party if such Affiliate has a financial interest in the third party or is a participant in such transaction or series of transactions.

Section 4.05 Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman.

(a) **Chairman of the Board.** The Board shall elect a Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the Directors then in office. The Chairman shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year or until his or her resignation, removal, death or disability or until his or her successor is duly elected. The Chairman shall have the authority provided in these Bylaws and the Rules. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board.

(b) **Vice Chairman of the Board.** The Board shall elect a Vice Chairman of the Board (the “Vice Chairman”) by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the Directors then in office. The Vice Chairman shall serve as such for a term of one (1) year or until his or her resignation, removal, death or disability or until his or her successor is duly elected. In the case of the absence or inability of the Chairman to act, or a vacancy in the office of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the Chairman unless determined otherwise by the Board. The Vice Chairman shall have the authority provided in these Bylaws and the Rules.

Section 4.06 Nominating Committee. Except as otherwise provided in the Rules and in accordance with this Section 4.06, the Nominating Committee shall nominate individuals in advance of each annual meeting of the Members to begin service as Directors at such annual meeting of the Members. At each annual meeting of the Members, the individuals selected pursuant to this Section 4.06 shall begin serving as Directors.

(a) The Nominating Committee shall not be a Board Committee, but rather shall be a committee of the Exchange. The Nominating Committee shall be composed of at least five (5) members. Nominating Committee members need not be Directors. One (1) member of the Nominating Committee with respect to each Exchange Facility shall be the Facility Representative selected by such Exchange Facility. At least twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Nominating Committee shall be Participant Representatives[. One (1) member of the Nominating Committee shall be the BOX Holdings Director unless such BOX Holdings Director declines to so serve] and [not more than twenty percent (20%) of all members of the Nominating Committee]at least one (1) Participant Representative shall be [BOX Holdings Directors]selected from among the Exchange Facility Participants of each then existing Exchange Facility. A majority of the members of the Nominating Committee shall be Non-Industry Representatives.

(b) Nominating Committee members shall serve terms of one year each beginning each year at the annual meeting of the Members. Each member of the Nominating Committee shall serve until his or her successor is appointed and qualified or until such member's resignation, removal, death or disability. Nominating Committee members may serve consecutive terms if appointed thereto.[Notwithstanding the foregoing and the provisions of Section 4.06(d), because the first annual meeting of the Members is intended to be held within ninety (90) days after the Exchange is approved as an SRO, new members of the Nominating Committee shall not be elected at the first annual meeting of the Members.]

[(c) The Members shall appoint the initial members of the Nominating Committee in accordance with the qualifications prescribed in Section 4.06(a).]

[(d)c]**Selection of Nominating Committee.** Prior to each annual meeting of the Members, the Nominating Committee shall nominate the individuals for election as members of the Nominating Committee at the next annual meeting of the Members in accordance with Section 4.06(a) and pursuant to the following:

(i) The Nominating Committee shall meet on such dates and at such times as determined by the Nominating Committee for the purpose of selecting the Nominating Committee nominees. The Nominating Committee shall provide the names of all Nominating Committee nominees to the Secretary not later than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the Members. Nominating Committee nominees shall promptly provide the Secretary such information as is reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's qualification as a Participant Representative or [the BOX Holdings Director]a Facility Representative, as applicable, and the Secretary

shall make a determination concerning the nominee's qualifications. Not later than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the Members, (A) the Secretary shall provide written notice to the then-serving Participant Directors representing an Exchange Facility of the name of each proposed Participant Representative nominee, from among the Exchange Facility Participants representing such Exchange Facility, so selected, (B) the Secretary shall provide written notice to [BOX Holdings]each Exchange Facility of the name of [the]its respective proposed [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee so selected, and (C) the Secretary shall provide written notice to the Members, as provided in the LLC Agreement, of the name of each Nominating Committee nominee so selected. In the event any Nominating Committee nominee is changed prior to the annual meeting of the Members, the Secretary shall promptly notify the Members of such change.

(ii) After receipt of notice of the proposed Participant Representative nominee(s) representing an Exchange Facility provided pursuant to Section 4.06([d]c)(i)(A), a majority of the then-serving Participant Directors representing such Exchange Facility shall have fourteen (14) days in which to notify the Secretary that one or more of [the]such proposed Participant Representative nominee(s) are not acceptable and the Secretary shall promptly notify the Nominating Committee thereof. In such event, the Nominating Committee shall select one or more replacement Participant Representative nominees representing such Exchange Facility and such notice and objection periods shall again apply. If [such]the Participant Directors representing an Exchange Facility do not timely notify the Secretary that any of the respective proposed Participant Representative nominee(s) are not reasonably acceptable, [such]the respective proposed Participant Representative(s) shall be the applicable Participant Representative nominee(s) representing such Exchange Facility submitted to the Members for election to the Nominating Committee at the annual meeting of the Members.

(iii) After receipt of notice of the respective proposed [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee provided pursuant to Section 4.06([d]c)(i)(B), [BOX Holdings]each Exchange Facility shall have fourteen (14) days in which to notify the Secretary that [the]its proposed [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee is not acceptable and the Secretary shall promptly notify the Nominating Committee thereof. In such event, the Nominating Committee shall select a replacement [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee and such notice and objection periods shall again apply. If [BOX Holdings]an Exchange Facility does not timely notify the Secretary that [the]its proposed [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee is not acceptable, such proposed [BOX Holdings Director]Facility Representative nominee shall be [the BOX Holdings Director]its Facility Representative nominee submitted to the Members for election to the Nominating Committee at the annual meeting of the Members.

(iv) At the annual meeting of the Members, the Members shall vote on the full slate of Nominating Committee nominees as a group. If the nominated slate fails to obtain the required vote of the Members, a new slate of Nominating

Committee nominees shall be selected by the Nominating Committee and the notice and response procedures, set forth in this Section 4.06(d)(c) with respect to the Participant [Directors]Representatives and [BOX Holdings]Facility Representatives, shall again apply prior to submitting the slate again to a vote of the Members as promptly as possible. Until the Members elect a new Nominating Committee slate, the existing Nominating Committee shall remain in place.

(v) In the event of the death, disability or resignation of any member of the Nominating Committee, the Members shall elect a replacement therefor to serve the remainder of such term, provided that the compositional requirements of the Nominating Committee set forth in Section 4.06(a) of these Bylaws shall be met upon the filling of any such vacancy.

(vi) In the event any nominee named by the Nominating Committee withdraws or becomes ineligible for any reason, the Nominating Committee may select an additional nominee, if necessary, to replace the withdrawn or ineligible nominee and the notice and response provisions set forth in this Section 4.06(d)(c) shall again be followed with respect to such alternative nominee(s), as applicable.

(e)d Selection of Directors. Prior to each annual meeting of the Members, the Nominating Committee shall select nominees for each Director position to begin service as Directors at such annual meeting of the Members in accordance with Section 4.02 and pursuant to the following:

(i) The Nominating Committee shall meet on such dates and at such times as determined by the Nominating Committee for the purpose of selecting the proposed Director nominees. The Nominating Committee shall provide the names of all proposed Director nominees to the Secretary not later than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the Members. Proposed Director nominees shall promptly provide the Secretary such information as is reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's qualification as a Non-Industry Director, a Public Director, a Participant Director or [the BOX Holdings]a Facility Director, as applicable, and the Secretary shall make a determination concerning the nominee's qualifications. Not later than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the Members, (A) the Secretary shall provide written notice to the [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants of each Exchange Facility of the name of each proposed Participant Director nominee representing such Exchange Facility so selected, (B) the Secretary shall provide written notice to [BOX Holdings]each Exchange Facility of the name of [the]its proposed [BOX Holdings]Facility Director nominee so selected, and (C) the Secretary shall provide written notice to the Members, as provided in the LLC Agreement, of the name of each proposed Director nominee so selected.

(ii) After receipt of notice of the proposed Participant Director(s) provided pursuant to Section 4.06(e)d(i)(A), [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants of an Exchange Facility may nominate alternative candidates for service as a Participant Director representing such Exchange Facility by submitting a petition naming an alternative candidate signed by not less than 10% of all then current

[BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants of such Exchange Facility. Each petition must include a completed questionnaire used to gather information concerning such Participant Director candidate, including such information as is reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's qualification as a Participant Director, and a statement signed by such alternative candidate confirming such candidate's willingness to serve as a Participant Director if duly elected. The Secretary shall provide the form of questionnaire for such use upon the request of any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant of such Exchange Facility. Petitions must be filed with the Secretary not later than 5:00 p.m. (Boston time), on the date that is fourteen (14) days after the date of the notice of the respective proposed Participant Director(s) provided pursuant to Section 4.06([e]d)(i)(A) and the Secretary shall promptly forward a copy of any such valid and timely filed petition to the Members and the members of the Nominating Committee. If no alternative candidates are properly nominated by a valid and timely petition, the Participant Director nominees proposed by the Nominating Committee shall be the Participant Directors to take office at the next annual meeting of the Members. In the event one or more alternative candidates are properly nominated by a valid and timely filed petition, the Secretary shall provide written notice to all [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants, with respect to the applicable Exchange Facility, of all respective proposed Participant Director candidates for such Exchange Facility nominated by the Nominating Committee and all alternative candidates for such Exchange Facility nominated by petition. Such notice shall include the number of Participant Director positions to be filled and the date, time and manner of a vote of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants to determine the final Participant Director(s), which date shall be determined by the Secretary and shall not be sooner than five (5) days after notice is given nor later than twenty (20) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the Members. The number of Participant Director positions for an Exchange Facility to be filled shall be equal to the number of Participant Director nominees originally proposed by the Nominating Committee with respect to such Exchange Facility for that year. In any such vote, each [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant shall have one vote per Participant Director position to be filled and the candidates (equal to the number of positions to be filled that year) receiving the largest number of votes shall be the Participant Directors representing such Exchange Facility to take office at the next annual meeting of the Members. Voting shall not be cumulative. No [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant, together with its affiliates, may account for more than twenty percent (20%) of the votes cast for any Participant Director nominee and any votes cast by such [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant, together with its affiliates, in excess of such twenty percent (20%) limitation shall be disregarded. Tie votes by [the BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants shall be decided by the Nominating Committee.

(iii) [BOX Holdings]Each Exchange Facility may, in its sole discretion, replace the nominee to serve as [the BOX Holdings]its Facility Director, by written notice filed with the Secretary not later than 5:00 p.m. (Boston time), on the date that is fourteen (14) days after the date of the notice of such proposed [BOX Holdings]Facility Director provided pursuant to Section 4.06([e]d)(i)(B). Any such replacement [BOX Holdings]Facility Director nominee shall take office at the next annual meeting of the Members. If [BOX Holdings]an Exchange Facility does not

replace [the]its proposed [BOX Holdings]Facility Director, such proposed [BOX Holdings]Facility Director shall be [the BOX Holdings]its Facility Director to take office at the next annual meeting of the Members.

(iv) By written notice filed with the Secretary not later than 5:00 p.m. (Boston time), on the date that is twenty-one (21) days after the date of the notice of the proposed Participant Director(s) provided pursuant to Section 4.06([e]d)(i)(C), Members holding a majority of the Voting Percentage Interest may, in each such Member's sole discretion, object to any Director nominee. The Members may object to the nomination of a nominee if the nominee has been disciplined by any securities regulatory authority or the nominee would be subject to statutory disqualification within the meaning of Section 3(a)(39) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Any nominee who is objected to by the Members is not eligible to serve as a Director during the next year and the Nominating Committee shall then nominate an eligible alternative nominee, if necessary, not later than ten (10) days after Members notify the Secretary of the Members' objection. The notice, petition, replacement and objection provisions set forth in this Section 4.06 shall again be followed with respect to such alternative nominee(s), as applicable, until all Director nominees are not objected to by the Members. Subject to Section 4.06([e]d)(ii), (iii) and (v), any proposed Director nominee not objected to by such Members shall be a Director to take office at the next annual meeting of the Members.

(v) In the event any nominee named by the Nominating Committee withdraws or becomes ineligible for any reason, the Nominating Committee may select an additional nominee, if necessary, to replace the withdrawn or ineligible nominee and the notice, petition, replacement and objection provisions set forth in this Section 4.06([e]d) shall again be followed with respect to such alternative nominee(s), as applicable.

([f]e) The Nominating Committee shall act by a vote of a majority of the members thereof present at a meeting, provided a quorum is present. At all meetings of the Nominating Committee, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a majority of the members of the Nominating Committee. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Nominating Committee members present may adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present.

([g]f) Unless otherwise restricted by the LLC Agreement or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Nominating Committee may be taken without a meeting, if written consent thereto is signed by all members of the Nominating Committee, and such written consent is filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or applicable Board Committee

Section 4.07 Resignation. Any Director may resign at any time either upon written notice of resignation to the Chairman or the Secretary. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time is not specified, upon receipt thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation, unless required by the terms thereof, shall not be necessary to make such resignation effective.

Section 4.08 Removal. Unless otherwise restricted by the LLC Agreement, these Bylaws or the Rules, any or all of the Directors may be removed from office, at any time, only if a determination is reasonably and promptly made by the Board by a majority vote, that, based upon the facts known to the Board at the time such determination is made, that the Director sought to be removed:

- (a) acted in bad faith;
- (b) did not act in a manner in the best interests of the Exchange;
- (c) engaged in conduct which was unlawful; or
- (d) deliberately breached his or her duty to the Exchange.

Section 4.09 Disqualification. The term of office of a Director shall terminate immediately upon a determination by the Board, by a majority vote of the remaining Directors, that: (a) the Director no longer satisfies the classification for which the Director was elected; and (b) the Director's continued service as such would violate the compositional requirements of the Board as set forth in Section 4.02 of these Bylaws. If the term of office of a Participant Director terminates under this Section 4.09 and the remaining term of office of such Participant Director at the time of termination is not more than six months, during the term of such vacancy the Board shall not be deemed to be in violation of Section 4.02 by virtue of such vacancy.

Section 4.10 Vacancies. Whenever, between meetings of the Exchange, any vacancy exists on the Board by reason of death, resignation, removal or increase in the authorized number of Directors or otherwise, such vacancy may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, provided that the compositional requirements of the Board set forth in Section 4.02 of these Bylaws shall be met upon the filling of any such vacancy. A Director so elected shall serve until the next annual meeting or until his or her successor is elected and qualified. In the case of a vacancy in the office of the Chairman, the Board may designate an acting Chairman among the Directors then in office.

Section 4.11 Meetings of the Board.

(a) **Time and Place of Meetings.** Any meeting of the Board may be held either within or without the State of Delaware as determined by the Board. Each meeting of the Board shall be held at such time and place as the Board may designate for the purpose of conducting such business as may be properly conducted at such a meeting.

(b) **Annual Meeting.** An annual meeting of the Board shall be held for the purpose of organization, election of Officers, and transaction of any other business. An annual meeting of the Board shall be held as soon as practicable following each annual meeting of the Members. If the annual meeting of the Board is not so held, it shall be called and held in the manner provided herein for special meetings of the Board.

(c) **Special Meetings.** Special Meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairman, by the President, by the CRO, by one or more Members holding a

majority of the Voting Percentage Interest or by at least three (3) of the Directors then in office. Notice shall be provided to all Board members of the time and place of any Special Meeting as provided in Section 4.11(g).

(d) **Secretary of Meetings.** The Secretary shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board. In the absence of the Secretary, the presiding Officer of the meeting shall appoint any other person to act as secretary of the meeting.

(e) **Meeting Participation by Teleconference.** Unless otherwise prohibited by the LLC Agreement, these Bylaws or the Rules, Directors and members of any Committee of the Exchange, may participate in any meeting of the Board or of any Board Committee or of any Committee of the Exchange, as applicable, by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all individuals participating in the meeting may hear one another, and such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting for all purposes.[In the event the BOX Holdings Director is unable to attend any meeting of the Board or of any Board Committee, the BOX Holdings Director may appoint, by written notice to the Secretary, a non-voting observer to attend such meeting in place of the BOX Holdings Director provided such observer otherwise meets the qualifications set forth in the definition of BOX Holdings Director.]

(f) **Participation in Meetings of the Board.** All meetings of the Board (and any Board Committee) pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Exchange (including disciplinary matters) or relating to the structure of [the]a market regulated by the Exchange shall be closed to all Persons other than members of the Board and Officers, staff, counsel or other advisors whose participation is, as determined by the Board (or such Board Committee), necessary or appropriate to the proper discharge of such regulatory functions. In no event shall members of the board of directors of BOX Holdings Group LLC, who are not also members of the Board, or any trustees, officers, staff, counsel or advisors of a Member, who are not also Officers, staff, counsel or advisors of the Exchange, be allowed to participate in any meetings of the Board (or any Board Committee) pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Exchange (including disciplinary matters) or relating to the structure of [the]a market regulated by the Exchange except as permitted by affirmative action of the Board.

(g) **Notice of Meetings.** Notice of any meeting of the Board shall be deemed to be duly given to a Director if (i) mailed to the address last made known in writing to the Exchange by such Director as the address to which such notices are to be sent, at least five (5) days before the day on which such meeting is to be held; (ii) sent to the Director at such address by facsimile or other electronic transmission, not later than two days before the day on which such meeting is to be held; or (iii) delivered to the Director personally or orally, by telephone or otherwise, not later than two days before the day on which such meeting is to be held. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in exigent circumstances where a delay has the potential to adversely affect the Exchange, notice of a meeting of the Board may be properly given by any method set forth in (ii) or (iii) above one day before the day on which such meeting is to be held. Each notice shall state the time and place of the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of,

any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice of such meeting, except for amendments to these Bylaws as provided under Section 11.01 of these Bylaws. Subject to Section 4.11(h), any meeting of the Board shall be a legal meeting without any prior notice if all Directors then in office shall be present.

(h) **Waiver of Notice.** Notice of any meeting of the Board need not be given to any Director if waived by that Director in writing whether before or after the holding of such meeting. Attendance at a meeting of the Board for which notice is required shall be deemed a waiver of such notice unless such attendance is for the sole purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

(i) **Presiding Director.** The Chairman, or, in the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, shall preside over meetings of the Board. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, a presiding Officer shall be chosen by a majority of the Directors present. The Secretary shall act as secretary of the meeting. In his or her absence, the presiding Officer shall appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting.

(j) **Quorum and Voting.** At all meetings of the Board, unless otherwise set forth in these Bylaws or required by law, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of the presence of a majority of the Directors then serving. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present may only adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present. The vote of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board except as may be otherwise specifically provided by law, the LLC Agreement, these Bylaws or the Rules.

(k) **Action by Written Consent.** Unless otherwise restricted by the LLC Agreement or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board or of any Board Committee may be taken without a meeting, if written consent thereto is signed by all members of the Board, or of such Board Committee as the case may be, and such written consent is filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or applicable Board Committee.

Section 4.12 Compensation. The Compensation Committee may provide for reasonable compensation of the Chairman, the Directors, the members of any Board Committee and the members of any committee of the Exchange. Each Director shall receive the same compensation as each other Director, other than the Chairman. The Chairman shall be eligible to receive higher compensation than the other Directors. The Compensation Committee may also provide for reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred by such persons in connection with the business of the Exchange.

ARTICLE 5. REGULATION

Section 5.01 General. The Board may adopt such rules, regulations, and requirements for the conduct of the business and management of the Exchange not inconsistent with the law, the Rules, the LLC Agreement or these Bylaws, as the Board may deem proper. A Director

shall, in the performance of such Director's duties, be fully protected, to the fullest extent permitted by law, in relying in good faith upon the books of account or reports made to the Exchange by any of its Officers, by an independent certified public accountant, by an appraiser selected with reasonable care by the Board or any committee of the Board or by any agent of the Exchange, or in relying in good faith upon other records of the Exchange.

Section 5.02 Confidentiality of Information and Records Relating to SRO Function.

All books and records of the Exchange reflecting confidential information pertaining to the self-regulatory function of the Exchange (including but not limited to disciplinary matters, trading data, trading practices, and audit information) shall be retained in confidence by the Exchange and its personnel, including any individuals entitled to information pursuant to Board observation rights (each, an "Observer"), and will not be used by the Exchange for any non-regulatory purposes and shall not be made available to any Persons (including, without limitation, any Members) other than to those personnel of the Exchange, to members of the Board and to any Observer to the extent necessary or appropriate to properly discharge the self-regulatory responsibilities of the Exchange, or unless required by court order or applicable law.

Section 5.03 Rulemaking. The Board may adopt, amend or repeal such Rules as it may deem necessary or proper, including, but not limited to, Rules with respect to:

- (a) Trading of securities on the Exchange;
- (b) Access of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants to any electronic system operated by the [System]Exchange or an Exchange Facility that receives and disseminates quotes, executes orders and reports transactions and the conduct of such [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants in regard to their use of Exchange facilities and systems;
- (c) Insolvency of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants;
- (d) Partners, officers, directors, stockholders and employees of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants;
- (e) Business conduct of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants;
- (f) Business connections of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants, and their association with or domination by or over Persons engaged in the securities business;
- (g) Capital requirements for [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants;
- (h) Arbitration of disputes, claims and controversies between [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants and procedures relating thereto; and
- (i) Conduct and procedure for disciplinary hearings and reviews therefrom.

Section 5.04 Securities. The Board may approve the admission of securities for trading on the Exchange or may remove the same from trading on the Exchange.

Section 5.05 Penalties. The Board may prescribe and impose penalties for violations of these Bylaws or the Rules, for neglect or refusal to comply with orders, directions or decisions of the Board or for any other offenses against the Exchange. Funds received by the Exchange as payment of such penalties shall not be used to make any distribution to the Members.

ARTICLE 6. COMMITTEES

Section 6.01 Board Committees. The Board shall create and maintain an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Regulatory Oversight Committee. The Board may appoint one or more additional Board Committees and delegate such responsibility and authority to such Board Committee for such time as determined by the Board, provided that one member of each such Board Committee (other than the Compensation Committee and the Regulatory Oversight Committee) shall be [the BOX Holdings]a Facility Director[unless such BOX Holdings Director declines to so serve]. Except as herein provided, vacancies in membership of any Board Committee shall be filled by the Board. The Board may designate one or more Directors as alternate members of any Board Committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of a Board Committee. In the event of the absence or disqualification of any member of a Board Committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not such member or members constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint one or more Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member, subject to the composition requirements of such Committee set forth in these Bylaws. Members of a Board Committee shall hold office for such period as may be fixed by the Board. Any member of a Board Committee may be removed from such Board Committee by the Board. A Director shall cease to serve on any Board Committee upon termination of his or her service as a Director for any reason.

Section 6.02 Procedures. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Rules, or by resolution of the Board, each Board Committee may determine the manner in which its proceedings shall be conducted. Each Board Committee shall have the power to adopt a charter and other written policies and procedures for such Board Committee. The Secretary shall keep regular minutes of Board Committee meetings and report the same to the Board.

Section 6.03 Committee Quorum and Voting. Each Board Committee shall determine, by majority vote of its members, its rules with respect to notice, quorum, voting and the taking of action, provided that such rules shall be consistent with law, these Bylaws and the Rules applicable to the Board and the resolution of the Board establishing such Board Committee.

Section 6.04 Executive Committee. The Board may appoint an Executive Committee, which shall have and be permitted to exercise all the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Exchange between meetings of the Board, except that the Executive Committee shall not have the powers of the Board, if any, with respect to approving any merger, consolidation, sale of substantially all of the assets or dissolution of the

Exchange. A majority of the Directors serving on the Executive Committee shall be Non-Industry Directors. At least twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Executive Committee shall be Participant Directors and at least one (1) Participant Director shall be selected from among the Exchange Facility Participants of each then existing Exchange Facility. The Executive Committee shall include [the BOX Holdings Director unless the BOX Holdings] each Facility Director except with respect to any such Facility Director who declines to so serve. Executive Committee members shall hold office for a term of one year. At all meetings of the Executive Committee, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a majority of the Executive Committee, including at least a majority Non-Industry Directors and at least one Participant Director.

Section 6.05 Audit Committee. The Board shall appoint an Audit Committee, which shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), Directors, none of whom shall be Officers or employees of the Exchange, and each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Audit Committee charter. A majority of the Directors serving on the Audit Committee shall be Non-Industry Directors. The Audit Committee shall include [the BOX Holdings] one (1) Facility Director [unless the BOX Holdings Director declines to so serve]. The Audit Committee shall perform the following primary functions, as well as such other functions as may be specified in the charter of the Audit Committee: (A) provide oversight over the Exchange's financial reporting process and the financial information that is provided to the Members and others; (B) provide oversight over the systems of internal controls established by management and the Board and the Exchange's legal and compliance process; (C) select, evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the Exchange's independent auditors (or nominate the independent auditors to be proposed for ratification by the Members); and (D) direct and oversee all the activities of the Exchange's internal audit function, including but not limited to management's responsiveness to internal audit recommendations.

Section 6.06 Compensation Committee. The Board shall appoint a Compensation Committee, which shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), Directors, each of whom shall meet the requirements established in the Compensation Committee charter. All of the Directors serving on the Compensation Committee shall be Non-Industry Directors. The Compensation Committee shall not include [the BOX Holdings Director.] any Facility Directors. The Compensation Committee shall set compensation, including compensation policies, programs, and practices for Directors, Officers and employees of the Exchange. The Compensation Committee shall take into consideration any recommendations made by the President.

Section 6.07 Regulatory Oversight Committee. The Board shall appoint a Regulatory Oversight Committee, which shall consist of not less than three (3), and no more than five (5), Directors, each of whom shall be Non-Industry Directors. The Regulatory Oversight Committee shall not include [the BOX Holdings Director.] any Facility Directors. The Regulatory Oversight Committee shall oversee the adequacy and effectiveness of the Exchange's regulatory and self-regulatory organization responsibilities, assess the Exchange's regulatory performance, and assist the Board and committees of the Board in reviewing the regulatory plan and the overall effectiveness of the Exchange's regulatory functions. The CRO shall report to the Regulatory Oversight Committee and the Regulatory Oversight Committee, in its sole discretion, shall make all hiring and termination decisions with respect to the CRO, in each case taking into consideration any recommendations made by the President. The Regulatory Oversight Committee shall establish

a direct reporting line of communication with the CRO and shall meet regularly with the CRO to review regulatory matters.

Section 6.08 Hearing Committee.

(a) The Hearing Committee shall not be a Board Committee but shall be a separate committee of the Exchange. Promptly after the annual meeting of the Members, the Chairman shall appoint a Hearing Committee composed of such number of [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants and individuals who are not [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participants as the Chairman shall deem necessary, none of whom shall be Directors. The Hearing Committee or any panel thereof shall include at least one Participant Representative and shall have exclusive jurisdiction to conduct hearings on disciplinary proceedings brought by the Exchange against any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant, or any Person employed by or associated with any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant for any alleged violation of the Exchange Act, the rules and regulations thereunder, these Bylaws or the Rules, or the interpretations and stated policies of the Board (an "Exchange Violation").

(b) If [a BOX Options]an Exchange Facility Participant, or Person employed by or associated with [a BOX Options]an Exchange Facility Participant, is adjudged guilty of an Exchange Violation in any disciplinary proceeding, the Hearing Committee or any panel thereof shall be empowered to impose one or more of the following disciplinary sanctions: expulsion, suspension, limitation of activities, functions and operations, fine, censure, being suspended or barred from being associated with [a BOX Options]an Exchange Facility Participant, or any other fitting sanction with respect to each Exchange Violation as to which guilt is determined. Any [BOX Options]Exchange Facility Participant or Person adjudged guilty of an Exchange Violation in any disciplinary proceeding by the Hearing Committee or any panel thereof shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Board. The decision of the Board shall be deemed to be the final action of the Exchange. Any decision of the Board may ultimately be appealed to the SEC.

(c) The foregoing jurisdiction, function and powers shall be exercised by the Hearing Committee in accordance with the provisions in Rule Series 12000.

Section 6.09 Committee Expenses. Funds to meet the regular expenses of each Board Committee and other committee of the Exchange shall be provided by the Board, and all such expenses shall be subject to the approval of the Board.

ARTICLE 7. OFFICERS

Section 7.01 Officers. The Board shall elect the Officers, which shall include a President, a Chief Regulatory Officer (the "CRO"), a Secretary and such other executive or administrative Officers as it shall deem necessary or advisable. All Officers shall have such titles, powers and duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Board. The CRO shall

report to each of the President and the Regulatory Oversight Committee and shall have general day-to-day supervision over the Exchange's regulatory operations. The terms of office of such Officers shall be at the pleasure of the Board, which, by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, may remove any such Officer at any time (other than the CRO, who shall be subject to the Regulatory Oversight Committee, pursuant to Section 6.07). One person may hold the offices, and perform the duties, of any two or more of such offices.

Section 7.02 Absence of Officer and Delegation of Duties. In case of the absence of any Officer, or for any other reason that the Board may deem sufficient, the Board may confer, for a time, the powers or duties, or any of them, of such Officer upon any other Officer or upon any Director.

Section 7.03 Resignation and Removal. Any Officer may resign at any time upon written notice of resignation to the Board or the President. Any such resignation shall take effect upon receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make the resignation effective unless so specified therein. Each Officer shall be subject to removal with or without cause at any time by action of the Board, except as otherwise set forth in the LLC Agreement or these Bylaws. The terms of office of such Officers shall be at the pleasure of the Board, which, by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, may remove any such Officer at any time. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Exchange may be filled by the Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CRO shall be subject to the Regulatory Oversight Committee, pursuant to Section 6.07.

Section 7.04 Election and Term of Office. Each Officer shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal.

Section 7.05 Compensation. The compensation of the Officers shall be fixed by the Board or the Compensation Committee, but this power may be delegated to any Officer in respect of other Officers or employees under his or her supervision.

Section 7.06 Secretary. The Secretary shall record all the proceedings of the meetings of the Members, the Board and Board Committees in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall also record therein all actions taken by written consent of the Members or Directors in lieu of a meeting. The Secretary shall determine whether a nominee for either a position as a Director or as a prospective member of a Board Committee or other committee of the Exchange meets the required qualifications for such a position and the Secretary shall review the qualifications of such persons at least annually. The Secretary shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to Directors and members of other committees of the Exchange. The Secretary shall have charge of the books and papers of the Exchange as the Board may direct. The Secretary shall have all such further powers and duties as are generally incident to the position of Secretary or as may be assigned to the Secretary by the Board.

Section 7.07 Agents and Employees. In addition to the Officers, the Exchange may employ such agents and employees as the Board may deem necessary or advisable, each of whom shall hold office for such period and exercise such authority and perform such duties as the Board or any Officer designated by the Board from time to time determines. Agents and employees of

the Exchange shall be under the supervision and control of the Officers unless the Board determines that an agent or employee shall be under the supervision and control of the Board.

Section 7.08 Bond. The Exchange may secure the fidelity of any or all of its Officers, agents, or employees by bond or otherwise.

ARTICLE 8. INDEMNIFICATION AND ADVANCEMENT OF EXPENSES

Section 8.01 Right to Indemnification. The Exchange may indemnify any Person against any claim to the extent determined by the Board to be in the best interests of the Exchange. The Exchange shall indemnify, and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by law as it presently exists or may thereafter be amended, any Person (and the heirs, executors, and administrators of such Person) who, by reason of the fact that such Person is or was a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Exchange, or the member of a committee of the Exchange, or is or was a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Exchange who is or was serving at the request of the Exchange as a director, officer, employee or agent of another Person, including without limitation service with respect to employee benefit plans, (each an “Indemnified Person”) is or was a party, or is threatened to be made a party to (i) any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or (ii) any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding by or in the right of the Exchange to procure a judgment in its favor, in each case against expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such Indemnified Person in connection with the defense or settlement of, or otherwise in connection with, any such action, suit, or proceeding (collectively, “Indemnified Claims”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Indemnified Person shall be indemnified by the Exchange, and no claim shall be an Indemnified Claim, if and to the extent (1) such claim is the result of the Indemnified Person’s fraud, bad faith or willful misconduct, (2) with respect to any criminal proceeding, the Indemnified Person believed or had reasonable cause to believe that such Indemnified Person’s conduct giving rise to such claim was unlawful or (3) such Indemnified Person deliberately breached such Indemnified Person’s duty to the Exchange, in each case as determined by a final, unappealable judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction.

Section 8.02 Right to Advancement of Expenses. The Exchange shall advance expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements) to Indemnified Persons for Indemnified Claims; provided, however, that the payment of such expenses incurred by such Indemnified Person, in advance of the final disposition of the matter, shall be conditioned upon receipt of a written undertaking by the Person to repay all amounts advanced if it should be ultimately determined that the Person is not entitled to be indemnified under this Article 8 or otherwise.

Section 8.03 Board Determination Not to Advance Expenses. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of these Bylaws, no advance shall be made by the Exchange to any Indemnified Person if a determination is reasonably and promptly made by the Board by a majority vote of those Directors who have not been named parties to the action, even though less than a quorum, or, if there are no such Directors or if such Directors so direct, by independent legal counsel, that, based upon the facts known to the Board or such counsel at the time such determination is made: (1) such Indemnified Person committed fraud, acted in bad faith or engaged in willful misconduct; (2) with respect to any criminal proceeding, such Indemnified

Person believed or had reasonable cause to believe that such Indemnified Person's conduct was unlawful; or (3) such Indemnified Person deliberately breached such Indemnified Person's duty to the Exchange.

Section 8.04 Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The indemnification provided by this Article 8 in a specific case shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which an Indemnified Person may be entitled, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while in such capacity, and shall continue as to an Indemnified Person who has ceased to be a Director, Officer, or committee member, employee, or agent and shall inure to the benefit of such Indemnified Person's heirs, executors, and administrators.

Section 8.05 Effect of Repeal or Modification. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this Article 8 shall not adversely affect any right or protection hereunder of any Person respecting any act or omission occurring prior to the time of such repeal or modification.

Section 8.06 Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim for indemnification or advancement of expenses under this Article 8 is not paid in full within sixty (60) days after a written claim therefor by an Indemnified Person has been received by the Exchange, the Indemnified Person may file suit to recover the unpaid amount of such claim and, if successful in whole or in part, shall be entitled to be paid the expense of prosecuting such claim. In any such action, the Exchange shall have the burden of proving that the Indemnified Person is not entitled to the requested indemnification or advancement of expenses.

Section 8.07 Insurance. The Exchange shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any Person who is or was a Director, Officer, or committee member, employee or agent of the Exchange, or who is or was serving as a director, officer, employee, or agent of another Person against any liability asserted against such Person and incurred by such Person in any such capacity, or arising out of such Person's status as such, whether or not the Exchange is required to indemnify such Person against such liability hereunder.

ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.01 Maintenance of Books and Records. All books and records, including minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees, shall be maintained by the Secretary. Any records maintained by the Exchange in the regular course of business, including its books of account and minute books, may be kept on, or be in the form of, magnetic tape, computer disk, or any other information storage device, provided that the records so kept can be converted into clearly legible form within a reasonable time. All books and records of the Exchange shall be maintained at a location within the United States.

Section 9.02 Conflict. In the event of a conflict between these Bylaws and the LLC Agreement, the LLC Agreement shall control in all instances.

ARTICLE 10. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, CONTRACTS, ETC.

Section 10.01 Payment Instruments. All checks, drafts, bills of exchange, notes, or other obligations or orders for the payment of money shall be signed in the name of the Exchange by

such Officer or Officers or person or persons as the Board, or a duly authorized Board Committee, may from time to time designate. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Board, any Board Committee given specific authority in the premises by the Board, or any Board Committee given authority to exercise generally the powers of the Board during intervals between meetings of the Board, may authorize any Officer, employee, or agent, in the name of and on behalf of the Exchange, to enter into or execute and deliver deeds, bonds, mortgages, contracts, and other obligations or instruments, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 10.02 Governmental Documents. All applications, written instruments, and papers required by any department of the United States Government or by any state, county, municipal, or other governmental authority, may be executed in the name of the Exchange by any principal Officer or subordinate Officer of Exchange, or, to the extent designated for such purpose from time to time by the Board, by an employee or agent of the Exchange. Such designation may contain the power to substitute, in the discretion of the person named, one or more other persons.

ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS; EMERGENCY BYLAWS

Section 11.01 Amendments. These Bylaws may be amended, added to, rescinded or repealed at any meeting of the Board, provided that notice of the proposed change was given in the notice of the meeting and, in the case of the Board, in a notice given no less than twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. The Exchange shall review any amendment, modification, waiver or supplement to these Bylaws and, if such amendment is required under Section 19 of the Exchange Act and the rules promulgated thereunder to be filed with, or filed with and approved by, the SEC before such amendment may be effective, then such amendment shall not be effective until filed with, or filed with and approved by, the SEC, as the case may be.

Section 11.02 Emergency Bylaws. The Executive Committee may adopt emergency Bylaws subject to repeal or change by action of the Board that shall, notwithstanding any different provision of these Bylaws, be operative during any emergency resulting from any nuclear or atomic disaster, any attack on the United States or on a locality in which the Exchange conducts its business or customarily holds meetings of the Board, any catastrophe, or other emergency condition, as a result of which a quorum of the Board or another Board Committee cannot readily be convened for action. Such emergency Bylaws may make any provision that may be practicable and necessary under the circumstances of the emergency.